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FROM:        Josh Law, Planner 
DEPT:        Planning and Zoning 
TO:        Kelly Michaels, City Clerk 
DATE:        March 26, 2024 
RE: Cash Deposit in Lieu of sidewalk construction – Storsafe self-storage Site and Development 

Plan Petition No. 23-71SP 
 

SUBJECT:     Cash Deposit in Lieu of sidewalk construction for Council Action 23-71SP 
              

This is the first redevelopment project in the Seaboard area and is located at the corner of 
Warfield Avenue South and Camion Street. The property has historically been used for a variety 
of indoor and outdoor storage. The approved Site and Development Plan is to construct an 
approximately one story, 32,518 square foot indoor storage building in addition to updating the 
access, parking, and architectural design of the existing building on site. The property is accessed 
at three existing locations: Calle Del Sol, Warfield Avenue and Camion Street. The applicant has 
proposed decorative photos to adorn the exterior building walls. In working with the applicant, 
the staff recommended using historical photos that tell the history of the seaboard area. The 
applicant agreed and the proposed photos are shown on the architectural elevations.  

The subject site and development plan was heard by Planning Commission on March 5, 2024 and 
was approved 6-1. The Planning Commission recommended approval of the Cash Deposit in Lieu 
of sidewalk construction 5-2.  
 
Request from Applicant for cash deposit in lieu 
As part of the Site and Development plan, the construction of sidewalks are required. Pursuant 
to Ch.87.Sec.3.4.2.E.1, a request can be made for a cash deposit in lieu of actual sidewalk 
construction.  
 
Ch.87.Sec.3.4.2. Sidewalks 

Cash Deposit in Lieu of Construction.  
1. Where determined that circumstances exist (including planned future 

reconstruction of a street or the existence of a major surface drainage system), 
which make the immediate construction of a sidewalk impractical, the owner or 
developer may propose a cash deposit in lieu of equivalent sidewalk construction 
for the roadway frontage. Such proposals shall be based upon design, permitting, 
and construction estimates and shall be reviewed by City staff and provided with 
a recommendation of the Planning Commission to City Council for a final decision. 

2. All such sidewalk deposits shall be held in a special sidewalk fund which may be 
used by the City for construction of new sidewalks (but not maintenance of existing 
sidewalks) at any needed location in the City.  

 
The applicant believes the anticipated future infrastructure improvements in the Seaboard area 
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are likely to result in the need to tear out the required sidewalks, and therefore a cash deposit in 
lieu would better suit the City’s needs, until the extent of future infrastructure improvements are 
fully understood.  
 
Staff Response 
The Planning and Zoning department prefers that a sidewalk be constructed at this location 
instead of a cash deposit in lieu due to potential unforeseen complications regarding utility 
infrastructure and timing of area redevelopment.  
 
The City Engineer is not able to evaluate whether the 3,000 dollars estimate for resolution of 
utility conflicts is sufficient and the City’s Engineering department prefers that a sidewalk be 
constructed at this location rather than a cash deposit in lieu.  
 
The cash deposit in lieu estimate submitted by the applicant is in the table below. The City’s 
Engineering department agrees with the applicant’s estimate other than the miscellaneous 
section highlighted in yellow.  
 
Applicants Estimate

 
Council Action 
Council Determination for approval or denial of Cash Deposit in Lieu of Sidewalk Construction.  


